

Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds & Carpentry 2018 – 2019 SY

Negotiated Agreement

Table of Contents

Association	3
General Provisions, Policy 4235	4
Grievance, Policy 4236	7
Employment	11
Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action, Policy 4001	12
Responsibilities for Licensed and Classified Personnel, Policy 4001.1	12
Definition of Licensed Personnel, Policy 4008	12
Employment, Policy 4015	12
Transfer Procedure – Classified, Administrative Procedure 4015.1	13
Seniority, Policy 4211	14
Assignment, Policy 4214	14
Promotion / Transfer, Policy 4215	15
Work Hours / Meals / Work Year, Policy 4216	16
Retirement / Resignation / Separation, Policy 4219	18
Evaluation / Probation, Policy 4237	19
Compensation, Benefit, and Leave	20
Wages/Promotion/Call Time/Overtime, Policy 4241	21
Negotiations and Multi-Year Agreement, Memorandum of Understanding	25
Travel Reimbursement, Policy 4010	26
Professional Growth, Policy 4242	26
Application Form for Professional Growth, Administrative Procedure 4242.1	29
Insurance, Policy 4044	30
Coordination and Collection of Insurance Premiums, Administrative Procedure 4044.1	30
Insurance Benefits, Policy 4244	31
Additional Medical Contribution, Memorandum of Understanding	32
Workers' Compensation, Policy 4012	33
Workers' Compensation Claims Procedures, Policy 4012.1	33
Absences and Leaves, Policy 4251	37
Sick Leave Bank, Policy 4251.1	39
Sick Leave Bank Enrollment Form, Administrative Procedure 4251.2	42
Sick Leave Bank Request Form, Administrative Procedure 4251.3	43

Sick Leave Bank, Request to Terminate Membership, Administrative Procedure 4251.4	. 44
Vacations / Holidays, Policy 4255	45
Military Leave, Jury Duty Leave, Subpoenaed Witness, Policy 4051	46
General	48
Employee - Board of Education Relationships, Policy 4002	49
Publication of Articles, Policy 4003	49
Political Activities, Policy 4006	49
Organizational Membership, Policy 4013	49
Activity Tickets, Policy 4043	49
Physical and Mental Examinations and Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testing, <i>Policy</i> 4047	50
Communicable or Life-Threatening Diseases, Administrative Procedure 4047.2	52
Drug-Free Workplace, Policy 4048	54

Association Information

General Provisions, Policy 4235

A. Bulletin Boards and Mailing

- 1. The employer agrees to furnish and maintain suitable bulletin boards in convenient places in each work area to be used by the employees' representative.
- 2. The employees' representative shall limit its posting of notices and bulletins to such bulletin boards.
- 3. The use of District Mail Service will be available to employees' organization representatives. Such use shall comply with legal requirements.
- 4. The Union through its officers and representatives will have the right to communicate with staff in the bargaining units it represents via email or like electronic means provided that any such communication will comply with and be subject to any District policy concerning the use of email systems or the like or for communication via the Internet or intranet.

B. <u>Visits by Employees' Representatives</u>

- 1. The employer agrees that employees' organization representatives shall have reasonable access to the premises upon request and approval from the employer and building administrator or designee.
- 2. In case the building administrator and designee are not available to grant approval for the above, the Director of Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry or designee may approve the reasonable access request.

C. Uniforms and Protective Clothing

- 1. Once a year, beginning July 1 and continuing to the following June 1, employees shall be given an allotment of \$240 for their yearly uniforms. The uniform will consist of dark blue denim Levis, or the equivalent. The employee may utilize the remaining allotted dollars for purchasing additional clothing as identified on the District vendors list (i.e. shirts, sweatshirts, smocks, etc.). Employees may buy overalls, insulated coveralls, steel-toed boots, work boots and winter gloves, if requested, not to exceed the allotted \$240. Different clothing brands purchased by the employee, which are not offered by the District, will be reimbursed with proper receipts and are not to exceed the \$240 allotment. All outer wear (i.e. shirts, coats, sweatshirts, overalls) shall have a District patch for identification and colors will be consistent with department uniforms. Catalogs will be available in the CMGC office. Employees that arrive to work with uniforms that are torn, tattered or otherwise unacceptable will be sent home to change with no pay. Employees who repeatedly arrive to work with unacceptable uniforms will be disciplined per policy 4237. *New hires are expected to order uniforms within 30 days of employment.
- 2. Employees will be expected to wear uniforms which are in good condition. If the uniform allotment of an employee has been expended, the employee will utilize their own resources. Disregard of this provision may result in suspension and/or termination when Policy 4237 has been followed.

3. Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds personnel, who are directed to work outside, will have appropriate foul weather gear available on a check-out system from the maintenance shop.

D. Tools and Equipment

- 1. The District will replace or repair any Custodial, Maintenance or Grounds employee's equipment or tools which have been damaged, stolen, inoperable or lost in the performance of his/her job. Said tools must be inventoried and a record validated by the employee's supervisor will be provided to the Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry offices. Requests for a replacement comparable to the damaged, stolen, inoperable or lost tool, or repair of a tool, require prior approval by the Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds.
- 2. Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees shall be responsible for the proper care and use of equipment checked out to them.
- 3. If feasible and as determined by the Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds, the District shall provide any specialty tool, equipment, and safety clothing needed to properly perform a required job.

E. Employee Policy and Negotiated Agreement

The District is intent upon limiting the environmental and cost impacts of providing hard cover employee handbooks. The District is also intent upon providing maximum employee access to these. Therefore, the policies relating to Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry personnel and all modifications to the policies will be posted on the website by the District. Copies will be provided for officers and the central offices as needed.

F. Employee Security

Employees may choose to associate with an organization or association through membership. Such decision shall be at the employee's option. The employer agrees that there shall be no discrimination because of an employee's relationship with any association. That is, the employer agrees that stewards and members of the association will not be discriminated against for exercising their lawful rights under Board Policy.

No representative of management or the employees' association shall exert undue influence upon an employee to join or not to join an employee association.

G. Membership Fee Payment

Upon an employee's written request, the employer agrees to deduct any membership initiation fee, assessment and monthly dues from the employee's pay. The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the employer and the employees by the treasurer of the employees' organization. The aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted, together with adequate detail, to the treasurer of the employees' representative on the 10th of the succeeding month, after such deductions are made.

Any employee desiring to join or to terminate affiliation with the employees' organization is to notify the payroll department, in writing, which, in turn, shall forward a copy of such notice to the treasurer of the employees' organization within three to five working days.

H. Recognition

The Cherry Creek Board of Education recognizes the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry Association, Local 1605 as the negotiating agent for all Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees. If, at any

time during the life of this Policy, 30% of the Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees petition the Board of Education to change bargaining agents, the Board and the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry Association, Local 1605 shall hold a representative election. This election shall take place within 15 days after receipt of the above-mentioned petition. The election shall be to determine one of the following:

- 1. To retain the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry Association, Local 1605 as the bargaining agent.
- 2. To elect a new bargaining agent.
- 3. To decertify the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry Association, Local 1605 and have no organization serve as bargaining agent.

A majority of those voting will determine the outcome of the election. Cost of the election will be shared by the petitioning group and the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry Association, Local 1605.

I. Safety Committee

The Safety Committee shall consist of representatives from the Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees and the administration with the chairperson alternating from Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry and the administration on a yearly basis. The number of members will be determined by the committee. The meetings will be held two (2) times per year (July, February) unless additional meetings are required. The minutes will be posted and distributed to the Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees.

J. <u>Labor Management</u>

Three officers/or designees of the association shall meet with the Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry and appropriate management personnel on subjects of general concern, on an as-needed basis. Agenda items will be presented by association and/or Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry three days prior to the meetings.

K. Commercial Driver's License

In conjunction with commercial driver's license provision for required drug testing:

- 1. Cherry Creek School District Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry Department Association will be notified in writing of all jobs required by federal law, state statute, and/or local Board of Education policy to maintain a commercial driver's license. The Association has the right to challenge management's decision on who must carry a commercial driver's license.
- 2. Those who now have a commercial driver's license and are not required by federal law, state statute, local Board of Education policy, and/or the Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry department will be given the option to keep the commercial driver's license or relinquish it. If an employee relinquishes a commercial driver's
 - license, but is later required to have one, the employee shall be responsible for the cost of reinstating a commercial driver's license, except as stated in L. below.
- 3. When an employee with a commercial driver's license declares he/she is on medication which may impair their ability to drive, an attempt will be made by the supervisor to accommodate the employee by reassigning duties for the short term. If the supervisor determines the employee's ability is impaired to perform their duties, the employee may be required to use leave.
- 4. With regard to drug free testing for persons in positions requiring a commercial driver's license, the District will pay for the cost of the second split sample urine test if the employee produces, in a timely manner from a qualified testing laboratory as determined by the District, evidence that creates a reasonable doubt about the validity of either test. The Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry will make this determination.

L. <u>Licensing Fees</u>

The District will reimburse those employees required to hold professional licenses, certifications or CDL endorsements for the cost of the original or renewal fees for such professional licenses, certifications or CDL endorsements. Proof of renewal and valid receipts must be submitted to the appropriate Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, or Carpentry office.

Changed from Policies 4218 and 4227.

Refer to Master Book maintained in the Office of Human Resources for revisions prior to 1984.

Revised: June 1, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

Grievance, Policy 4236

A. Stewards and Grievance Committee

The Grievance Committee will consist of seven members. Grievance Committee members and stewards may investigate and process grievances during working hours without loss of pay with approval of the director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and

Carpentry (CMGC) or designee. Supervisors in need of assistance from the association may contact the chief steward.

The employees' association representative during the month of January shall provide an annual list of employees serving as stewards, and a list of employees comprising the Grievance Committee to the superintendent and all CMGC employees.

B. Grievance Process

A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by an employee alleging there has been a violation, a misinterpretation, or inequitable application of any of the provisions of these policies, except that the term "grievance" shall not apply to any matter as to which (1) method of review is prescribed by law or (2) the Board is without authority to act. An attempt at resolution of the violation should be made at a lower level of supervision with or without a steward, or association representative present, prior to processing of a grievance. The grievant shall be present at any and all steps where a formal decision may be rendered, (i.e. resolution of the matter, or relegation to a higher authority), unless agreed upon by both management and the employee or representing party. If time limits prescribed in Steps I, II, and III are not followed by the district, the grievance will automatically be sent to the next step.

A grievance shall be processed in the following manner:

- Step I. A steward, or association representative, and/or the employee, may take up the grievance or disagreement with the appropriate Department Manager within five working days
 - (A) actual occurrence
 - (B) after attempt at resolution with a supervisor
 - (C) knowledge of the occurrence by the steward or association representative.

The Department Manager may then attempt to adjust the matter, and shall respond to the steward, association representative and/or employee within five working days. If deemed appropriate, the immediate supervisor may be involved through a private or a joint hearing during this step. Time may be extended with an oral request, followed by written request upon approval of both parties.

Step II. A steward or association representative, and/or the employee, may take up the grievance or disagreement to the Director of CMGC within five working days of the immediate Department Manager's response, as set forth in Step I above. The Director of CMGC may then attempt to adjust the matter and shall respond to the steward or association representative, within five working days. If deemed appropriate, the immediate supervisor may be involved through a private or a joint hearing during this step. Time may be extended with an oral request, followed by written request upon approval of both parties.

- Step III. If the grievance has not been resolved to the grievant's satisfaction, it may be presented by the steward association representative, and/or the employee, to the Human Resources Department or designee, in writing within five working days after the response of the Director of CMGC is due. The Human Resources Department or designee, shall respond in writing to the steward, association representative or Grievance Committee, with a copy of the response to the president of the employees' association, within five working days. If deemed appropriate, the immediate supervisor may be involved through a private or a joint hearing during this step. Time may be extended with an oral request, followed by written request upon approval of both parties.
- Mediation is a voluntary process in which a trained impartial third party assists Step IV. employees in conflict to reach a mutually acceptable agreement. If a grievance has not been resolved to the grievant's satisfaction, the grievant may make a written request for mediation. The steward, union representative, employee, or Grievance Committee will present this request to the assistant superintendent or designee. This written request must be submitted within ten days after the response of the Human Resources Department or designee. For mediation to occur, both parties must agree to the process. The Human Resources Department or designee must notify the steward within five days of receiving the request if mediation is agreeable. If either party does not agree to mediation, the grievance may be taken to Step V. If both parties agree to mediation, the process will be scheduled within two weeks of the notice of agreement. If mediation resolves the grievance, the grievance will be concluded. If mediation does not resolve the grievance, the grievance may continue to Step V.

The mediation process will be reviewed at the next negotiation session to determine effectiveness and appropriate step placement.

Step V. If the grievance has not been resolved to the grievant's satisfaction within 15 working days, the grievant, by written notice to the assistant superintendent, superintendent, or designee, may request a hearing. Time may be extended with an oral request, followed by written request upon approval of both parties.

The hearing shall be conducted by a hearing officer to be selected by the employer and the employees' association representative within ten working days after notice has been given. If the parties fail to select a hearing officer, the State Mediation and Conciliation Service shall be requested by either or both parties to provide a panel of five hearing officers. Both the employer and the employees' association representative shall have the right to strike two names from the panel. The party requesting the hearing shall strike the first name; the other party shall then strike one name. The process will be repeated and the remaining person shall be the hearing officer.

The findings/recommendations of the hearing officer shall be submitted to the Board of Education for consideration and action within 30 calendar days after

the conclusion of testimony and argument.

Expenses for the hearing officer's services and the proceedings shall be borne equally by the employer and the employees' association. However, each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, providing it pays for the record and makes the copies available without charge to the other party and the hearing officer.

C. Confidentiality

It is the intent of the Cherry Creek Custodial, Maintenance, and Grounds Association, Local 1605 and the Board of Education that all proceedings and written and verbal discussions shall be kept as confidential as possible so as not to impede an equitable solution to the grievance.

Changed from Policy 4216.7

Revised: May 25, 2017 Adopted: June 12, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

Employment Information

Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action, *Policy 4001*

From its inception, the Cherry Creek School District has attempted to develop policies and procedures to assure the employment, retention and promotion of personnel on the basis of merit without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or handicap. This policy reaffirms our fundamental goal of pursuing equal employment opportunity in all matters of personnel actions fulfilling the letter and intent of laws designed to eradicate discrimination or harassment in conditions of employment. This commitment specifically provides that the recruitment, hiring, retention, opportunities for advancement, compensation, termination of employees be done on the basis of bona fide occupational qualifications and educational requirements of the District, without favor, influence or harassment and without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or handicap.

Revised: March 9, 1981 Adopted: April 6, 1981

Responsibilities for Licensed and Classified Personnel, *Policy 4001.1*

The Office of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources is responsible for matters dealing with the overall management of the licensed and classified staff of the Cherry Creek School District.

Matters of personnel concern needing central administrative guidance and/or assistance should be referred to the Office of Human Resources.

Approved by Superintendent Richard P. Koeppe, January 12, 1981.

Definition of Licensed Personnel, Policy 4008

The term "Licensed Employee" is applied to an employee who holds one or more documents such as a license or a letter of authorization which has been granted by the State Department of Education.

All employees who are directly responsible for the instruction or guidance of pupils, or who administer such instruction, shall be licensed employees.

Definition of Classified Personnel

The term "Classified Employee" is applied to employees who are not required to hold a certificate or a letter of authorization as a prerequisite to obtain or keep their job.

Adopted: January 10, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1983

Employment, Policy 4015

The Board of Education is obligated to hire the most qualified applicants to fill existing vacancies.

Qualified applicants who have followed the District application process may include in-district transfers, as well as individuals not currently employed by the Cherry Creek School District.

Proposed: May 10, 1982 Adopted: June 14, 1982

Transfer Procedure – Classified, Administrative Procedure 4015.1

When a classified position becomes available within the District, any qualified classified employee will be given serious consideration.

In order that this may be realized, all classified employees must follow the procedure as listed.

Please use the following transfer procedure to assure consideration of in-district classified employees in filling all vacancies.

- Step 1: The Office of Human Resources will post vacancies as soon as possible after receipt and approval of the Personnel Requisition.
 - The vacancy announcement will be posted on the District's website for a period of eight (8) calendar days.
- Step 2: Those interested in specific transfer opportunities must submit an on-line Transfer Request form to the Office of Human Resources no later than 4:00 p.m. on the closing date of the vacancy.
 - 1. On-line Transfer Request forms are available on the District's website.
 - 2. Kiosks with computers are available in the Office of Human Resources for District employees to submit an on-line Transfer Request form.
 - 3. The Office of Human Resources will electronically acknowledge receipt of the on-line Transfer Request form.
- Step 3: Following the closing date, a list of all transfer applicants will be available online to the appropriate building administrator, or designee, for review.
- Step 4: The administrator, or designee, will consider all applicants for a vacancy and select applicants for interviews based on their qualifications for the vacancy.
- Step 5: Within thirty (30) calendar days, the building administrator, or designee, must make a decision to:
 - 1. Recommend a candidate to fill the vacancy, or
 - 2. Cancel the vacancy
 - 3. Request the Office of Human Resources to repost the vacancy or position
 - 4. At the request of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, or designee, the thirty (30) day period may be extended to accommodate unusual circumstances.

We recognize the fact that informal communication between administrators and potential applicants may occur in an effort to secure the most highly qualified staff possible. This should not, however, interfere with serious consideration of all in-district transfer requests.

Seniority, Policy 4211

A. <u>Seniority</u>

An employee's seniority is the length of continuous service in the District calculated from his/her last date of hire.

The employer shall maintain a seniority list every six months on all bulletin boards showing the continuous service of each employee. A copy of the seniority list shall be furnished to the employees' representative when it is posted.

An employee's continuous service record shall be broken by resignation, discharge for just cause, or retirement.

An employee's position on the seniority list will not change during any leaves approved by the Board of Education.

B. Layoff

All other things being equal in the employer's judgment as to ability, skill and efficiency, layoffs shall be made according to total length of continuous employment.

Any layoff not in accordance with seniority may be taken to the Labor-Management Committee.

C. Recall

Recall shall be made according to seniority prior to the layoff.

Changed from Administrative Procedure 4216.6

Revised: June 24, 1997 Adopted: June 24, 1997 Effective: July 1, 1997

Assignment, Policy 4214

A. Job Duties

Job descriptions/clarification for custodial, maintenance, and grounds personnel shall be established by the administration. The affected employee and/or the president of the employee union or his/her designee may review the listing of duties and make recommendations for change to the administration. The union president or designee will be notified of all clarification or changes within seven work days prior to effective date of proposed changes. Communication from the union president or designee to the appropriate supervisor regarding these changes must occur within three work days of union president's/or designee's receipt of changes.

Any custodial, maintenance or grounds employee will have access to existing job descriptions of the custodial, maintenance, and grounds departments, if requested.

B. After Hours Work

Efforts will be made to insure assignment of two custodial, maintenance, and grounds personnel to a facility after normally assigned working hours.

Changed from Policy 4216.53.

Revised: June 24, 1997 Adopted: June 24, 1997 Effective: July 1, 1997

Promotion / Transfer, Policy 4215

A. Promotion/Transfer

When filling a vacancy other than Group I, a notice of such vacancy shall be posted in designated areas per Administrative Procedure 4015.1. Any interested person may apply for the position through the established Classified Personnel Transfer Request procedure. The senior employee shall be promoted if all other factors are equal. Any applicant who meets minimum qualifications with five consecutive years with the District shall be granted an interview. If an employee feels he/she was not given proper consideration in the promotion, he/she may appeal the selection through the grievance procedure (Policy 4236).

B. Reassignment/Transfer

1. Reassignment

Any employee desiring a lateral move to another position shall submit a written request to the District maintenance office stating the reason for the request for reassignment. Receipt of such requests will be acknowledged by the District maintenance office within seven working days.

All requests for lateral reassignment shall be evaluated. Reassignment requests will be retained until the end of the current school year.

2. Transfer

Any employee desiring to transfer must submit a Classified Personnel Transfer Request form to the Office of Human Resources prior to the closing date of a posted vacancy.

The transfer procedure in Administrative Procedure 4015.1 shall be followed. All other factors being equal in the employer's judgment as to ability, skill, and efficiency, transfers shall be made in accordance with seniority.

The District will make every effort to give primary consideration to District employees who request a transfer to a vacant position.

C. <u>Voluntary Transfers</u>

1. A lateral transferee changing job classification within the same group may be eligible for a pay increase commensurate with greater responsibilities and/or qualifications. Such increase, if any, will not exceed 5% more than the employee's current pay and will not exceed the maximum pay for that group. Any pay increase is subject to supervisor discretion and requires the approval of the Executive Director Educational

Support Services. If the resulting wage exceeds other employees' wages in the group, no salary adjustments will be made to the other employees.

2. A transferee moving to a lower group may receive a wage decrease as determined by the supervisor with the approval of the Executive Director of Educational Support Services. The new salary shall not exceed the salary of an employee with greater longevity within the same group/subgroup. If the wage of the transferring employee exceeds the wage of other less senior employees in that job classification within the same group, no salary adjustments will be made to the other employees. Salaries must be within the wage schedule and may not exceed the maximum of the range.

D. <u>Involuntary Transfers</u>

- 1. A lateral transferee changing to a different job classification in the same group will maintain his/her current wage. If the transferee's wage exceeds the wages of current employees in the same job classification, no salary adjustments will be made.
- 2. When any position not listed on the wage schedule is established, the employer may designate a job classification and rate structure to the position. In the event the employee's representative does not agree that the classification and rate are proper, the employee representative shall have the right to file a grievance at Step II of Policy 4236.

Revised: June 2, 2014 Adopted: August 11, 2014 Effective: July 1, 2014

Work Hours / Meals / Work Year, Policy 4216

A. Hours of Work / Work Week

The work week will be defined as Monday 12:00 a.m. through Sunday 11:59 p.m.

Eight and one-half hours of work shall constitute a work shift, including breaks and meal periods. All employees shall be scheduled to work in a regular, assigned work shift, and each work shift shall have regular starting and ending times.

Work shift changes that last three or more weeks and impact maintenance and grounds employees require a one-week advance notice. Notification will include the start and end times and the starting date. This provision does not apply to emergency shift changes.

B. Breaks

All employees' work schedules shall provide for a 15-minute break during each one-half shift whenever this is feasible. Employees may combine the break(s) with the meal period providing prior approval from the immediate supervisor is obtained. Employees who, for any reason, work beyond their regular ending time into the next shift shall receive a 15-minute break before they start to work on the next shift. In addition, they shall be granted the regular breaks that occur during the shift.

C. Emergency/Storm Designation

1. All Schools / Offices / Facilities Closure:

When the Superintendent or designee closes all schools, offices, and facilities for any reason (e.g. snowstorm or other emergency), to staff and/or students and programs, during staff contact days, the following items apply:

- (a) The closure shall apply for the 24-hour period from midnight to midnight during which the closure announcement was made.
- (b) Only employees who are designated essential by the Director of Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry shall report to work. These employees shall be paid double time for the work while schools are closed.
- (c) For those so designated who are unable to report to work, the absence will be recorded as a day of general leave. If leave has been exhausted, pay shall be withheld without point reduction for the day(s) that individual is unable to work.
- (d) Those not designated as essential employees on days when schools are closed shall not report for work and will be paid the regular hourly rate for their work shift.

2. Designated Schools / Offices / Facilities Closure

- (a) The closure shall apply for the 24-hour period from midnight to midnight during which the closure announcement was made.
- (b) Only employees who are designated and directed to report to a closed facility will report to that facility. Employees directed to work at a closed facility shall be paid double time while working at that facility. Work orders do not constitute direction by a supervisor.
- (c) For those so designated who are unable to report to work, the absence will be recorded as a day of general leave. If leave has been exhausted, pay shall be withheld without point reduction for the day(s) that individual is unable to work.
- (d) Those designated as non-essential and assigned to a closed school/facility on days when schools are closed shall not report for work and will be paid the regular hourly rate for their work shift.
- (e) Employees assigned to schools not affected by closure, shall report as a normal day.

D. Meal Periods

All employees shall be granted a meal period of one-half hour during each work shift. In the event work beyond the normal shift is required by the employer, the employer agrees to provide a reasonable service of food, or if the employer is unable to reasonably supply food service, will reimburse the employee not more than \$10.00 per meal, provided work beyond the normal shift is at least three hours in length, and an official receipt is submitted by the employee. No meal or cost of meal will be provided unless at least 11 consecutive hours have been worked.

E. School Lunch Program

Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees may eat at school cafeterias and are required to pay the adult rate.

F. Work Year

Beginning with the 2011 - 2012 fiscal year, Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry personnel will be paid on the basis of the actual number of work days in the year.

Revised: June 1, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

Retirement / Resignation / Separation, Policy 4219

A. PERA

All employees covered by this policy are required by law to become members of the Public Employees' Retirement Association (PERA). Payroll withholding in this program will be accomplished according to the scheduled rate published by the Public Employees' Retirement Association (PERA).

Retirement practices will be administered in accordance with the rules and policies of PERA.

B. Disability Retirement

In the event of separation or retirement due to disability (as interpreted by PERA) full compensation for all unused accumulated sick leave will be made for those employees whose continuous service exceeds five years (60 months). Such compensation will be paid at the rate of pay that the employee is earning at the time of separation or retirement.

C. Compensation Upon Separation

Upon separation for resignation or retirement, and after ten years of continuous service in benefitted classified employee groups, accumulated leave/sick leave will be compensated at one-half of the employee's rate of pay at the time of separation.

1. Eligibility Criteria

A classified employee becomes eligible when the following criteria have been met or, when otherwise approved by the Board of Education:

- (a) Been employed by the District in a position eligible for leave pay-off and for the number of years required by employee group policy to be eligible for a leave payment.
- (b) Submitted a written resignation from employment in the District to the Board of Education. This resignation shall be effective prior to receiving cash and/or benefits under this policy.

- (c) Completed an Accumulated Leave Compensation application and has submitted it to the Board of Education.
- 2. Each classified employee shall have the option to choose to receive payment for accumulated leave in annual payments over a period of not more than three years. In no case shall payments for accumulated leave in excess of \$25,000 be made in less than two years.

3. Death Provisions

Upon the death of the retiree receiving the accumulated leave compensation, the unpaid portion of the allotment shall be due and payable to the retiree's designated beneficiary using the same schedule as agreed to by the retiree.

Split from Policies 4241.31 and 4243.13

Revised: June 1, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

Evaluation / Probation, Policy 4237

A. Probation

1. All new employees, or those promoted to a new position, shall be placed on a 60-working-day probation automatically. Continuation of employment shall be determined by appropriate supervisory personnel during this period.

B. Evaluation

1. Employees will be evaluated annually.

C. Disciplinary Process

- 1. Any employee who is not performing adequately shall be given a minimum of one verbal and two written warnings regarding the performance of their duties. In the event the performance is not improved to the level required in writing by the supervisor, termination may result after the second written warning.
- 2. Employees may request to review their personnel file. Such review will be subject to established District and office procedures.
- 3. All disciplinary documents remaining in the file longer than two years will be removed at the employee's written request, except if such documents must be retained for legal purposes. Legal items will be held in a separate confidential file in the Office of Human Resources. These files will be accessed by designated human resources personnel only and for legal purposes only. The written request to remove a disciplinary document must be sent to the supervisor and the Office of Human Resources. A shop steward may be present during review of the file upon the employee's request. The procedure to review the request should take no more than 15 work days.

Revised: June 1, 2012 Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

Compensation, Benefit, and Leave Information

Wages/Promotion/Call Time/Overtime, Policy 4241

A. Wages

Effective July 1, 2018, each Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry (CMGC) employee will receive an hourly increase by the amount of CPI.

Starting salary for new employees to CMGC may be up to mid-range on the salary schedule. This will be at the supervisor's discretion and the approval of the Director. Salaries may not exceed the maximum.

All existing employees in the same job classification and section as a new employee shall be paid a minimum of \$50 more per month than a new employee. Probationary employees will not receive a \$50 wage adjustment due to a new hire. Salaries may not exceed the maximum.

B. Promotion

Any CMGC employee promoted to a higher pay grade and job classification may be eligible to receive up to an eight (8%) percent pay increase, not to exceed the maximum of the new salary range. This will be at the supervisor's discretion and approval of the Director. If the starting wage of the promoted employee exceeds the wage of a current employee of the same job classification within the same group, the current employee's wage shall be adjusted by \$25 per month, not to exceed maximum.

C. Call Time

- 1. An employee at the work site or en route to work, who is required to start work in an emergency before his/her regularly-scheduled work shift, shall be paid at the overtime rate for a minimum of thirty (30) minutes or whatever time is worked prior to his/her normal work shift, whichever is greater.
- 2. An employee called to report to work in an emergency, outside his/her regularly-scheduled work shift, who is not at work or en route to work, shall be paid at the overtime rate for a minimum of two hours or whatever time is worked prior to his/her normal shift, whichever is greater.
- 3. Time worked after the normal shift, as directed by a supervisor shall be paid as overtime.
- 4. Travel will be paid from the time the employee begins travel to the site until employee clocks out at maintenance or the building site for a minimum of two hours, whichever is longer.
- 5. Scheduled early reporting and reporting to perform normal duties caused by inclement weather shall not be considered call time.
- 6. Work from home will be documented in 15 minute increments.

On Call Pay

Effective January 1, 2018, employees who are on-call for emergency or urgent CMGC

duties shall be paid \$150/week.

The Director of Facilities or their designee will determine the rotating schedule for oncall participants.

On-call employees must be available to work during their entire on-call shift. Employees will be expected to respond to calls within two hours while serving their on-call shift. Failure to report to any urgent or emergency call within the parameters set herein may result in disciplinary action.

D. Overtime

Time and one-half of the employee's regular hourly rate of pay shall be paid for work performed in excess of forty hours in any work week.

Overtime work shall be voluntary, except in an emergency. There shall not be a penalty against any employee who declines to work overtime. Employees are expected to perform reasonable overtime duties.

E. Single-Occasion Responsibility

Employees directed to fulfill the responsibilities of higher-level tasks shall be compensated at the minimum of the higher range or \$95 per month (also figured to a per diem or hourly rate) over their current monthly rate, whichever is greater. Higher pay shall commence on the first day of the higher level task until completion, as directed by the supervisor.

F. Merit

Any opportunity for merit increases must be negotiated on an annual basis.

G. Snow Removal

Emergency snow removal personnel, as identified by the Grounds Department, that begin work prior to 6:00 a.m. for snow removal, will be paid their per diem plus a premium of one half their pay for the full eight (8) hours. Additional hours will be paid at time and a half.

(This portion intentionally left blank)

2018 - 2019 SY

GROUP	MINIMUM	MAXIMUM
Group II		
Day Custodian	\$13.86	\$20.14
Group III		
Building Engineer Carpet Crew Custodial Rover	\$14.29	\$22.67
Group IV		
Section A M.S. Building Manager ******** Section B		
H.S. Assistant Building Manager Assistant Shopkeeper Carpet Crew Supervisor General Maintenance General Maintenance Machine Operator ************************************	\$15.00	\$23.79
Section C		
Crew Leader Grounds Machine Operator Irrigation Technician ************************************		
Group V		
General Maintenance - Playgrounds H.S. Building Manager Preventive Maintenance Mechanic	\$16.15	\$25.66
Group VI		
Grounds Assistant Mechanic Shop Parts Manager Carpenter Irrigation Specialist Painter Roofer	\$17.41	\$27.99

Maintenance Dispatcher Equipment Operations Specialist Grounds Striper Weed Control Specialist		
Group VII Assistant Quality Control Manager Assistant Supervisor – Grounds	\$18.47	\$29.64
Senior Crew Leader – Maintenance Field Equipment Supervisor – Grounds Grounds Mechanic PM Mechanic III	Ψ10.+7	Ψ27.04
Group VIII		
HVAC Control Specialist HVAC Technician		
HVAC Project Technician		
Plumber Preventative Maintenance HVAC Pool		
Manager	\$23.30	\$32.87
Appliance Repair Technician		
Welder		
Glazier		
Locksmith		
Plumbing Specialist		
Shop Parts Manager Group IX		
HVAC Control Manager Lead Appliance Repair Technician	\$25.68	\$35.37
Lead HVAC Technician	φΔ3.00	φυυ.υ1
Plumbing Supervisor		
Lead Locksmith		
Group X		
Senior HVAC Technician	\$28.07	\$37.85
Senior Controls Manager		

H. Longevity Pay

Effective July 1, 2017, the following longevity pay will be granted to eligible employees as additional salary, to be paid in a lump sum in July of each year. This will not be included in base pay. For purposes of this policy, years of service must be continuous. For purposes of longevity pay, an employee must work 120 days or more during each fiscal year to receive a year of service credit.

Completed Years of Service	Additional Annual Salary
10-14 years	\$500
15-19 years	\$1000
20 or more years	\$1300

Revised: April 12, 2018, April 16, 2018

Adopted: Effective: July 1, 2018

Negotiations and Multi-Year Agreement, Memorandum of Understanding

The parties have reached a three (3) year agreement commencing on July 1, 2017. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) sets forth the agreement of the parties with respect to the matters addressed herein. To the extent that there is an inconsistency between the provisions of this MOU and any Negotiated Policy, the terms of this MOU shall control with respect to the matter at issue.

- 1. For the 2017-2018 school year only, members of employee groups covered by this MOU who are eligible to do so, will receive a percentage increase to the equal to the Per Pupil Revenue ("PPR") percentage (as that term is defined in the 1994 School Finance Act). For the 2017-2018 school year the PPR percentage is 3.3%.
- 2. For the 2018-2019 school year only, it is the parties intention, subject to the limitations set forth herein, that members of employee groups covered by this MOU will receive a percentage increase equal to the PPR percentage. If the PPR percentage is negative, the increase will be 0%. If the PPR percentage is greater than the Denver-Boulder Consumer Price Index (CPI) percentage, the increase will be the CPI percentage.
 - In addition, the parties agree that during bargaining for the 2018-2019 school year, the following issues shall be subject to automatic reopening: compensation and benefits not related to the above; and language items limited to three additional non-financial item.
- 3. For the 2019-2020 school year only, it is the parties intention, subject to the limitations set forth herein, that members of employee groups covered by this MOU a percentage increase equal to the PPR percentage. If the PPR percentage is negative, the increase will be 0%. If the PPR percentage is greater than the CPI percentage, the increase will be the CPI percentage.
 - In addition, the parties agree that during bargaining for the 2019-2020 school year, compensation and benefits not related to the above shall be subject to automatic reopening. The parties also may bring three additional non-financial item.
- 4. For the 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 school years only, negotiations, will be suspended except under one or more of the following circumstances:
 - (a) As necessary with respect to those issues to be bargained pursuant to paragraphs 2 and 3 above:
 - (b) If the parties mutually agree to open negotiations on one or more items not directly related to financial provisions to the extent possible the party seeking mutual agreement to re-open such negotiations shall begin discussions with the other party no later than

- January 1st of either 2018 and/or 2019, on specific items. Neither party shall be required to enter into negotiations without consent on non-financial items.
- (c) In the event that the year-over-year percentage change in PPR used to calculate the cost of living adjustment in either the 2018-2019 and/or 2019-2020 school years is greater than the Denver-Boulder Consumer Price Index, then the parties shall reopen negotiations to assess the implications on the District's budget and available funds for compensation adjustments, if any.
- (d) In the event that the year-over-year percentage change in PPR used to calculate the cost of living adjustment in the 2018-2019 the 2019-2020 school years or both is less than zero percent (0%), or then the parties shall reopen negotiations in each instance to assess the implications upon the District's budget and available funds for compensation adjustments, if any.
- 5. Notwithstanding anything in this MOU to the contrary, pursuant to Colo. Rev. Stat. 22-32-110(5), all provisions of this MOU and any provisions of the negotiated policies pertaining to compensation and benefits, including but not limited to range movement, cost of living increases, "add-on" compensation, employee health and welfare benefits and the District contribution towards those benefits may be subject to reopening each year.
- 6. In the event of a reduction of school funds, the Board must, by law, adopt a Range Model commensurate with its ability to fund future budgets. Therefore, in the event of any reduction, negotiations must be reactivated on economic matters related to salaries and fringe benefits, and any policy concerning economic items that have been adopted will have to be modified commensurate with the funds available.

Travel Reimbursement, *Policy 4010*

On the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board of Education shall authorize the payment of travel expenses. Payment at the official District rate per mile shall be made for any employee or member of the Board of Education while conducting official District business. Claims for payment shall be made in the manner prescribed by the Superintendent acting in accordance with established State funding requirements.

Adopted: January 10, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1983

Professional Growth, Policy 4242

Classified staff shall be encouraged to participate in approved professional growth activities. The Cherry Creek Board of Education shall provide each fiscal year the sum of \$42,500 to be used by classified staff, applying for funds, to defray the cost of such activities. This fund will be closed at the end of each fiscal year with any remaining funds returned to the General Fund. Temporary classified personnel will not be eligible for funds. The Classified Employee Council reserves the right to make the final decision on approval of funds. The Director of Classified Employees in Human Resources, or designee, will act in an advisory capacity in approval of fund expenditures.

1. Goals/Aims

The Professional Growth Policy provides for classified staff to participate in professional growth activities, and to assist individuals with the cost of professional growth experiences that relate to classified staff job descriptions. Professional growth will add to our District value of improving the organization continuously and should be documented in the employee's yearly evaluation. These funds should be utilized to provide the greatest benefit to all classified staff.

The goals/aims are to:

- a) Encourage individuals to keep current with changes in the technology of the school business world and explore new methods of school business operations.
- b) Stimulate learning and encourage individuals to upgrade their skills, gain new skills, and/or refine techniques to enable them to prepare for increased responsibilities.

2. Application Process – Individual

- a) An individual may apply for professional growth funds at any time during the school year, July 1 through June 15.
- b) To receive reimbursement, the professional growth activity must meet at least one of the goals/aims listed above.
- c) An application form (Administrative Procedure 4242.1) must be completed before any request for reimbursement can be considered.
- d) An individual may not be reimbursed for more than \$500 in any given school year (exclusive of a group sponsored professional growth experience). Funds are available on a first-come, first-served basis.
- e) <u>Application Procedure after Completion of Course</u>: The applicant must provide an application, copy of course prospectus or outline, verification of payment, and evidence of satisfactory completion.
- f) Courses under \$25 each should be combined, where possible, and classes submitted together.
- g) Classes that meet during normal work hours must have approval of the individual's immediate supervisor prior to application.

3. Approval Process – Classified Employee Council

- a) The committee will review all applications monthly.
- b) The Council will determine a meeting place and time for the purpose of considering professional growth requests.
- c) The Committee will respond to all requests.
- d) The Committee may not grant more than \$500 to an individual in any fiscal year for professional growth activities covered under this procedure exclusive of group

- sponsored professional growth activities.
- e) Applications will be processed on a first come first served basis until all funds are depleted. Preapproval of funds may be granted to reserve funds for classes that occur/are completed late in the year. If a class is cancelled or the employee does not pursue taking the class, notification must be provided to the Director of Classified Employees in Human Resources in order to release those funds for other use.
- f) If there are sufficient funds, they may be used for speakers, films, rental of space and other related expenses necessary to conduct group sponsored professional growth activities.
- g) The Committee may also grant up to \$500 per fiscal year to an individual classified employee to sponsor group professional growth activities of primary interest to his or her department or to other classified employees having similar positions. All classified employees must be invited and most of the attendees must be classified employees. Reimbursement is similar to individual professional growth. The \$500 limit does not reduce the amount the sponsoring classified employee may spend on his or her own individual professional growth.

When the activity/class is complete, fill out entire application form, attach course description documentation, copy of proof of payment, verification of completion of class, and send one copy of the application packet to the Director of Classified Employees in Human Resources.

Adopted: August 11, 2014 Effective: July 1, 2014

Application Form for Professional Growth, Administrative Procedure 4242.1

Please fill out entire application form, attach course description documentation, copy of proof of payment, verification of completion of class, and send one copy of the application packet to the Director of Classified Employees in Human Resources.

Name	Work Location
Address (home)	
Phone Number (work)	Employee ID #
Present Position	Work Percent
Name of Activity	
Dates/Time	(attach documentation, i.e., course description, etc.)
Supervisor's approval if cla	ass is during work hours
Cost for class/course/books	s/materials
	(attach description showing costs, etc.)
Description of activity	
Comments on activity taken	n
IF YOU HAVE COMPLET	<u>ΓΕΟ THE COURSE</u> : Provide an application, verification of payment,
	y completion of all course work.
IF YOU ARE APPLYING	BEFORE YOU TAKE THE COURSE: Provide an application and a
copy of the course prospect	us or outline.
Please send your applicatio	n to: Director of Classified Employees in Human Resources.
	(Signature and Date)
Adopted: August 11, 2014	

29

Effective: July 1, 2014

Insurance, Policy 4044

1. Insurance

The Board of Education supports the idea that employees should be insured against personal and professional risks and in this regard will cooperate with staff members or representatives thereof in the development and administration of such a program.

The Board of Education shall protect the staff and program against undue invasion of the school day by insurance agents by not allowing such agents to solicit employees during the school day. Principals shall not allow materials from solicitors to be placed in mail boxes of employees or in school areas where employees may assemble.

2. Insurance Committee

- a. The Insurance Benefits Committee shall be established by the Superintendent, composed of one representative of each employee group of the Cherry Creek School District. Each representative may be appointed or elected by a majority vote of these employees. The Committee shall be chaired by a representative of the Human Resources department and include a representative of Fiscal Services.
- b. This Committee is charged with the responsibility of making an annual review of the District approved employee insurance plan.
- c. Following this review, the Committee shall make the annual report to the Superintendent. This report shall recommend retention of the existing program or appropriate changes.
- d. The Committee shall have the responsibility to monitor insurance coverage problems and to make procedural recommendations.

Revised: August 11, 1997 Adopted: August 11, 1997 Effective: July 1, 1997

Coordination and Collection of Insurance Premiums, *Administrative Procedure 4044.1* for Employees on Unpaid Leave of Absence

To make certain that <u>no</u> lapse in insurance coverage occurs when any eligible District employee is on approved unpaid Leave of Absence, the following procedure should be followed:

1. <u>Eligibility</u>

All employees who are eligible for the District's insurance program according to Board policy will be eligible according to the Insurance Carrier Contract to purchase medical, dental and vision coverage while on Leave of Absence.

2. Enrollment

To continue participation while on leave, an employee must notify the Benefits Office of desired coverage(s).

3. Premiums

Premiums for employees on leave shall be the current rates in effect without any District contributions.

. Premium Collection

- a. Premiums shall be paid on a monthly basis and shall be paid to the Benefits Office.
- b. Monthly billing statements will be sent to each employee who is on an approved unpaid leave of absence and who elects to continue their health coverage.

Termination of Coverage

- a. An employee on leave whose payment of premium is in arrears will be dropped from coverage and may not re-enroll without successfully completing the Insurance Carrier Contract requirements for re-enrollment during the annual open enrollment.
- b. The death of the employee on leave will cause termination of all coverages.
- c. A voluntary withdrawal from participation in this plan shall terminate coverage for employees on leave.

Approved by Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, June 24, 1998.

Insurance Benefits, Policy 4244

A. Eligibility

Eligible employees may participate in the benefit plans effective the first of the month following thirty (30) days of employment.

B. Flexible Benefit Plan

The District will contribute \$296.90 for the District approved insurance program for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry (CMGC) employees working a 75% or greater contract.

Employees working a 50% to 74% contract receive one half of the District contribution.

No District contribution is made for employees working less than a 50% contract.

Effective July 1, 2006, Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry employees newly hired shall be required to participate in the District approved medical insurance plan unless they can demonstrate coverage through a spouse's group plan, Tri-Care or Medicare.

Effective July 1, 2007, <u>all Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds and Carpentry employees</u> shall be required to participate in the District approved medical insurance plan unless they can demonstrate coverage through a spouse's group plan, Tri-Care or Medicare.

C. Premium Deposit Account

A. The District agrees to maintain a Premium Deposit Account (PDA) in order to provide funds to mitigate future insurance premium increases for all employees.

B. Expenditures

The District's insurance committee must approve all expenditures from the PDA under the following conditions:

- i. Expenditures from the PDA will only be used to increase the District Health Insurance Contribution.
- ii. Expenditures from the PDA may not be in excess of actual or reasonably projected funds.

C. PDA Funding Sources

Beginning with the 2001 school year, all money received from the insurance carrier's performance guarantee payments and any additional money received from the insurance carrier in the form of a rebate or refund will be placed into the PDA.

D. Life Insurance

The District will provide, at no cost to the employee, a District-approved Group Term Life Insurance Plan of \$25,000 for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees working a 50% or greater contract and who have been covered under the life insurance plan for thirty six (36) consecutive months or less.

The District will provide at no cost to the employee, a District-approved Group Term Life Insurance Plan of \$60,000 for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees working a 50% or greater contract and who have been covered under the life insurance plan for thirty-seven (37) consecutive months or more.

E. <u>Long-Term Disability Insurance</u>

The District will provide, at no cost to the employee, District-approved Long-Term Disability Insurance for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry employees working a 60% or greater contract.

Revised: May 25, 2017 Adopted: June 12, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

Additional Medical Contribution, Memorandum of Understanding

July 1, 2018

Effective July 1, 2018, employees, working at 50% appointment or greater, enrolled in any District Kaiser plan will receive an additional District Medical Contribution toward medical premium.

Coverage	Additional District Contribution
Employee only	\$217.10 per month
Employee +Spouse	\$302.36 per month
"Employee +Child(ren)	\$312.75 per month
Family	\$430.94 per month

Workers' Compensation, Policy 4012

As required by law, Cherry Creek School District carries Workers' Compensation insurance covering all employees of the District. Should an employee be injured while at work and the accident is within the scope and course of his/her employment, he/she is entitled to the benefits provided by the Workers' Compensation Law provided that such injury is reported to the employee's immediate supervisor as soon as practicable.

Information concerning the Colorado Workers' Compensation Law will be posted in each building.

Proposed: May 12, 1980 Adopted: June 9, 1980

Workers' Compensation Claims Procedures, Policy 4012.1

The Cherry Creek School District is self insured through the Joint School Districts' Workers' Compensation Self Insurance Pool. An employee who sustains a work related injury or disease which is directly attributable to the employee's job, trade, occupation, or position may qualify for medical and/or wage loss benefits under the Colorado Workers' Compensation Act.

Workers' Compensation claims are administered and adjusted by a third party administrator.

The purpose of the procedures is to establish the required reporting, time lines, and forms to be used for the reporting and handling of Workers' Compensation accidents.

PERFORMED ACTION: BY:

Employee Reporting Requirements

Injured employees must notify their supervisor within 48 hours after a work related injury.

Written notice must be given by the injured employee to the Risk Management Department within four working days after the accident.

The injured employee will assist the supervisor in completion of the First Report of Injury form.

Medical Treatment

Section CRS 8-404(5) of the Colorado Workers' Compensation Act allows the employer to select the physician(s) who treat injured employees.

The injured employee will be examined by the nearest District nurse, providing a nurse is available.

If further medical treatment is required, the District nurse or supervisor will issue the injured employee an Authorization Form for medical treatment at the District's designated medical providers:

- Concentra, 10355 E. Iliff Ave, Aurora, CO (303-755-4955)
- Concentra, 11877 E. Arapahoe Rd. Suite 100, Centennial, CO (303-792-7368)
- Care Now, 5620 E. Parker Road, Aurora, CO (720-446-5893)
- Rocky Mountain Medical Group, 13650 E. Mississippi Ave., Suite 120, Aurora, CO (720-748-7072)
- U.S. Health Works Medical Group, 800 E. Belleview , Suite 428C, Greenwood Village, CO (303-741-1166)
- Workwell Occupational Medicine, 2550 S. Parker, Road, Suite 150, Aurora, CO (720-512-4408)

PERFORMED ACTION: BY:

- The employee, after treatment, will return the Medical Status Report issued by the designated provider to their supervisor and assist in the completion of the First Report of Injury form.
- Emergency Care: In the event of a life or limb threatening situation, treatment should be sought from the nearest medical facility. However, the designated provider must be contacted and follow-up care must be directed by the designated physician.
- After Hours Care: In the event medical treatment is required for a work related injury after the office hours of the designated clinics or on a weekend, the employee should go to the Emergency Room at Centennial Healthcare Plaza, 14200 East Arapahoe Road, Centennial, CO (303-699-3000).
- If an employee wishes to be treated by a physician other than those approved, they do so at their own expense.

Lost Time

• Any time off from work due to a work related injury must be authorized by a designated physician.

- In accordance with the Colorado Workers' Compensation Statute, an injured employee must be absent from work for three days before Workers' Compensation Wage Benefits begin. Employees may use up to three days of their accumulated sick leave for the first three days of absence due to a work related injury, and thereafter, receive Statutory Workers' Compensation Benefits which is 2/3 of the employee's average weekly wage, subject to a maximum figure, which is established and adjusted each year by statute.
- The injured employee must return a copy of the doctor's report to their supervisor after each doctor's visit. This report will give the prognosis and the date the employee must return for follow-up visits.
- It is the duty and the responsibility of the injured employee to keep his/her supervisor advised of their return to work status.

Appropriate
Building
Administrator/
Supervisor or
the Nurse

Medical Treatment

Emergency Care: You should seek medical or emergency care for the injured worker at the nearest medical facility.

PERFORMED ACTION: BY:

Non-Emergency Care

If medical treatment is required beyond first aid rendered by the school nurse, the building administrator, supervisor or nurse should complete the Designated Physician's Authorization Form for the employee. Direct or take the injured employee to the nearest designated provider facility.

Reporting Requirements

- Give the injured employee the Cherry Creek Schools' Information Document on the District's Workers' Compensation Program.
- Forward the following to the Risk Management Department along with the physician's report on the injured employee:
 - 1. Completed Workers' Compensation Employee Status Report
 - 2. The Employer's First Report of Injury Form

This must be forwarded to the Risk Management Department within **four** calendar days of the occurrence. Note: The injured employee should not complete the Employer's First Report of Injury, but should assist in completion of the form.

• Advise the injured worker that written notice must be delivered to the

Risk Management Department within <u>four</u> working days of the accident.

 Investigate the claim and complete a Supervisor's Workers' Compensation Claim Follow-up Report and forward to the Risk Management Department.

If the supervisor feels the claim is not valid, the Risk Management Department should be notified of the fact and the supervisor will submit a written statement verifying why he/she feels the claim should not be honored.

• Note: All fatalities and any accident involving three (3) or more employees must be reported immediately by telephone to the Risk Management Office at (720) 554-4643.

PERFORMED ACTION: BY:

The supervisor will work closely with the Risk Management Department on the following:

- 1. Exact amount of time lost due to the injury.
- 2. Exact date employee returns to work.
- 3. If sick leave is being used for the first three days absence.
- 4. Furnish completed employee status reports after each followup visit by the injured employee to the designated provider.
- 5. Restricted light duty available for the return to work of employees that have been released by the designated physician with restrictions.

Hearings

The supervisor will attend hearings and cooperate with the District's Workers' Compensation insurer on the handling and adjudication of Workers' Compensation Claims.

Risk Reporting

Management

Written notice of accidents received from injured employees will be date stamped. Copies of the written notice will be made available to the injured employee within two working days following receipt of the notice. The Risk Management Office will forward the First Report of Injury form, medical reports, medical bills and supervisor follow-up reports to the District's Workers' Compensation Insurer within eight days of the injury.

Claims

The Risk Management Office will coordinate the claims with the insurer, injured employee, designated provider, Human Resources and the supervisor. Workers' Compensation master files and records will be maintained in the Risk Management Office.

Revised: August 1, 2017 Effective: July 1, 2017

Absences and Leaves, Policy 4251

A. Leave of Absence

- 1. A leave of absence may be granted for a definite period of time for injury, ill health, or other reasons, as approved by the Board of Education. A leave of absence may not exceed 24 months.
- 2. The first 12 weeks of a leave granted in accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) will run concurrently with the district-approved leave. Procedures for applying for FMLA leaves are available in the District Office of Human Resources.

An employee who returns to work at the end of the 12 week FMLA leave or any approved leave of 12 weeks or less will be eligible for the following:

- (a) Return to same position they held prior to the approved leave;
- (b) Approved salary changes that occurred during the approved leave;
- (c) An employee on paid leave for 12 calendar weeks or less will accrue sick and vacation leave while on leave. An employee on unpaid leave for 12 calendar weeks or less will not accrue sick or vacation until they return from leave.

During the first twelve weeks of a leave due to injury or ill health, the district contribution for health benefits will continue. For other approved leaves, the employee may continue health coverage at their own expense.

During a 12-week FMLA leave, the employee may be granted an extension of leave, not to exceed the 12-week period, by submitting a written request for an extension for a definite period of time to the Office of Human Resources 30 calendar days in advance of the leave expiration, if possible. The employee is required to submit a notice of return to work prior to the end of the leave period. If no request for extension is submitted by the employee prior to the end of the leave period, the employee will be expected to return to work at the end of the approved leave period.

3. A leave of absence greater than 12 weeks, but less than 24 months (104 weeks), may be granted by the Board of Education for injury, ill health or other reasons as approved by the Board.

An employee who returns to work at the end of such an approved leave will be eligible for the following:

- (a) Accrued leave while on paid leave. No accruals will be granted to employees on unpaid leave or approved for long-term disability coverage. Employees on worker's compensation will continue accruals of accrued leave, except such accruals will cease once the employee is no longer receiving worker's compensation benefits;
- (b) Employees will be eligible for approved salary changes that occur/occurred during the fiscal year in which the employee returns to work;
- (c) If the employee has been approved for long-term disability coverage, the District contribution for health benefits will continue for up to 24 months (104 weeks) from the initial date of the leave;
- (d) If the employee is not approved for long-term disability, but is on an approved leave of absence, the employee may continue their health coverage at their own expense for a maximum of 24 months (104 weeks) from the initial date of the leave;
- (e) Upon expiration of the approved leave, the employee will be considered for placement in the following order:
 - 1) in the same position they held prior to the leave, only if vacant or
 - 2) in a comparable position, in the same Custodial, Maintenance, or Grounds salary group for which the employee is qualified, if available or
 - 3) in another position for which the employee is qualified with salary adjusted accordingly.

Reassignment will occur as openings exist. If the employee does not accept a position offered by the District as listed in E 1), 2) and 3) above, the employee will be separated from the District.

4. The Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry may grant a temporary leave of absence for up to 15 working days. Such leaves must be reported to the Office of Human Resources in a timely manner. The temporary leave of absence will count as part of the entire leave.

D. Leave Time

Effective July 1, 2002, based upon assignment, each full-time employee shall earn 120 hours of leave annually and may accumulate these to an unlimited number. (This number shall include previously accumulated sick leave.) Leave will be prorated for employees working less than full-time.

Leave may be used for illness of the employee/the employee's family, or personal business. At no time will leave be used for recreational or vacation purposes.

The employee shall notify their supervisor prior to taking leave. Except in the case of illness or emergency, the employee shall notify their supervisor as much in advance as possible, but not less than 24 hours prior to taking leave.

Revised: April 16, 2018 Adopted: August 13, 2018 Effective: July 1, 2018

Sick Leave Bank, Policy 4251.1

A. Introduction

The purpose of the Sick Leave Bank is to provide for a limited income continuation in conjunction with other benefit plans in case of extended absences due to disability resulting from illness or injury, which renders the member incapable of working.

B. Membership

1. Initial Enrollment

All classified employees who earn leave will be eligible to join the Sick Leave Bank after one year of employment in an eligible group. All eligible employees with one year of employment or more will be automatically enrolled on their anniversary date unless they have declined/opted-out in writing. When an employee is enrolled, they will contribute 8 hours of leave to the bank.

2. Re-Enrollment

Any eligible employees who wish to join the Sick Leave Bank after their first year of eligibility will contribute two (2) days upon joining. Such membership may only be made during the month of October using the appropriate forms. The two (2) required days of leave shall be donated from their account upon enrollment in the Sick Leave Bank.

3. Contributed Days

Days contributed or assessed become part of the bank and no longer count toward the individual member's current or accumulated leave.

4. Dropping Membership

A member may terminate membership in the Sick Leave Bank by completing the required form (4905.3) provided by the Classified Employee Council (CEC). However, the days contributed by the member may not be withdrawn.

C. <u>Sick Leave Bank Operation/Procedural Guidelines</u>

1. Governance

Daily operation of this bank will be by the Benefits Office in the Office of Human Resources who will determine eligibility and usage of the bank. The CEC will oversee administration of total hours and hours used.

2. Operation

(a) The minimum number of days in the bank will be one hundred and fifty (150).

- (b) Should the number of days drop below the minimum, the CEC will take necessary action to raise the balance above the minimum. The CEC will have the authority to assess an additional day from each member. Days will be assessed in increments of one (1) additional day of current or accumulated leave from each member.
 - i) Inability to contribute, within a school year, will not prohibit individuals from being a member for the remainder of that school year unless the member affirmatively drops membership in the bank.
 - ii) Any members who were unable to contribute the assessed day(s) and did not affirmatively drop membership in the bank will have the assessed day(s) deducted from their current or accumulated leave during the following year.
- (c) If an assessment is deemed necessary, all members will be provided an opportunity to terminate their membership prior to the assessed day being deducted from their current or accumulated leave.
- (d) If the CEC feels that the bank cannot be funded adequately with the present membership or a more suitable plan is found, the CEC in conjunction with Human Resources can vote to terminate the bank. If the Sick Leave Bank is terminated, days remaining on the bank's records will be cancelled. Days will not be returned to the members of the Sick Leave Bank.
- (e) Members may contribute more days to the bank up to their leave balance amount.
- (g) This administrative procedure will be reviewed at least once each year.

D. Maximums / Minimums

- 1. A member in any single rolling year may be granted up to 45 days.
- 2. Any member will be assessed up to two (2) deduct days at per diem in connection with an application or illness in any single year.
- 3. If the balance of days in the Sick Leave Bank drops to one hundred and fifty (150) or below, members being granted days will continue to receive days. All new applications to the Sick Leave Bank will be put on hold until the CEC takes action to alleviate the situation. If the balance should reach zero (0) all days will cease to be granted, as the bank cannot operate in a deficit.

E. Granting of Days / Application Process

The term "day" is defined as a full workday. Days may be granted from the Bank only after the member requesting Sick Leave Bank days has used all his/her current and accumulated leave.

- 1. The first two (2) days of leave after the member has exhausted his/her accumulated leave will not be covered by the bank.
- 2. At the member's request, the two (2) deduct days may be spread over two (2) pay periods.

- 3. Upon acceptance by the LTD carrier, the two (2) deduct days will be reimbursed to the member.
- 4. When a member becomes eligible to receive benefits from the district approved LTD program; the member will no longer be eligible to receive days from the Sick Leave Bank. (Eligibility for LTD begins sixty (60) calendar days from date of disability resulting from illness or injury that renders the member incapable of working.)
- 5. Days from the Sick Leave Bank will be approved for extended illness and/or disability of a member only. Days will not be granted for a member to care for someone else who is ill or disabled.
- 6. Application for use of days must be made by the member to the Benefits Office in Human Resources any time prior to needing the days but not later than 60 calendar days after the member returns to work. Applications submitted at a time outside these limits will not be considered. Requests should include all of the following:
 - (a) A licensed physician's verification that the illness or disability is total and Renders the employee incapable of working.
 - (b) A medical leave of absence.
 - (c) A Sick Leave Bank application form.
- 7. The Benefits Office will have the authority to request additional information, Including a request to the Superintendent to use Policy 4047 (Physical/Mental Examination).
- 8. Coincident with approval of days, the approved number of days will be deducted from the Bank. All days granted from the bank, but not used, will be restored to the bank.
- 9. Requests for less than full days of disability will be considered when:
 - (a) The member is engaged in a rehabilitation/recovery program directed by a licensed physician; and
 - (b) The member's supervisor and/or building principal has approved a partial return to work.
- 10. A member who uses days from the bank will not be required to repay such days except as a regular contributing member of the bank.
- 11. The CEC will make available by request to classified employees a summary of action taken on requests and other information deemed appropriate. Information pertaining to specific individuals will be kept confidential within the Office of Human Resources. A representative of the Office of Human Resources will maintain a current record of days contributed and days used.

Revised: April 9, 2018 Adopted: August 13, 2018 Effective: July1, 2018

Sick Leave Bank Enrollment Form, Administrative Procedure 4251.2

CHERRY CREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT CUSTODIAL/MAINTENANCE/GROUNDS

I understand that I may cancel my membership in the Sick Leave Bank at any time by so indicating in writing. I further understand that I waive any right to those days already assessed if I do cancel my membership in the Sick Leave Bank by completing Administrative Procedure 4251.5, Request to Terminate Membership.				

Return this form to the Office of Human Resources.

42

Approved: Superintendent Monte C. Moses, June 11, 2007

Sick Leave Bank Request Form, Administrative Procedure 4251.3

Nan	ne _	Employee ID #		
Add	lress			
		hone		
Faci	ility			
		of Years in Cherry Creek School District		
Nur	nber	of Leave Days Requested		
1.	Coincident with a request to the Sick Leave Bank Board, a member must make application the District's Long-Term Disability carrier for disability benefits.			
2.	This form may be submitted prior to the actual use of requested days, <u>but must be</u> submitted within ninety (90) calendar days after the Sick Leave Bank member returns to work for the Sick Leave Bank Board to consider the request.			
3.	For	your own protection, please read Administrative Procedure 4251.1.		
4.	Bef	Fore the Sick Leave Bank Board will consider your request, you must submit:		
	, ,	A licensed physician's verification that the illness or disability is total and renders the employee incapable of working. Actual or expected date of return to work.		
	(c)	A completed Long-Term Disability (LTD) Form.		
	(d)	A Medical Leave of Absence Request.		
	(e)	Past history of sick leave usage.		
5.	Sig	ned:		
6. Physici		vsician's statement of the nature of the illness/disability:		
		wife that this illness (dischility is total and non-days the mannhan in somehla of weathing		
NO		ertify that this illness/disability is total and renders the member incapable of working. Your patient has exhausted all available personal sick leave and is now requesting a Leave With Pay from the Sick Leave Bank.		
	Act	tual or Expected Date of Return to Work:		
	Phy	vsician's Signature: Date:		
	Pho	one:		

43

Approved: Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, February 10, 1992

Sick Leave Bank, Request to Terminate Membership, Administrative Procedure 4251.4

I,	terminate my membership in
the Cherry Creek School District Sick Leave Bank effective	I understand that the
days I have contributed may not be withdrawn.	
SIGNED:	
DATE:	
Approved: Superintendent Robert D. Tschirki, February 10, 1992	2

Vacations / Holidays, Policy 4255

A. Vacations

 Full-time Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds employees will earn hours for vacation purposes based on their years of continuous service in the district. Current employees will be given access to the days at the beginning of the fiscal year. New employees are given a prorated number of vacation days for the fiscal year at the initial time of employment.

Years of Service	Hours Per Year	Days	
0, 1, 2	80	10	
3, 4, 5	96	12	
6 through 15	144	18	
16+	192	24	

- 2. Employees are to be granted vacation periods based on their length of service in the district. Senior employees will be given an opportunity to choose vacation periods before employees lower on the seniority list. The seniority factor pertains to the initial vacation calendar only and does not pertain to any vacation changes made thereafter.
- 3. Requests for vacations shall be made at least 10 calendar days prior to the anticipated start of said vacation. The Director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry shall base a decision upon the best interest of the District, and act upon such request within one week.
- 4. Two days of vacation may be granted with 24-hour notice given by the employee. In an emergency, this 24-hour notice may be waived by the Director of Custodial, Maintenance, Grounds, and Carpentry.
- 5. Vacation time earned under this policy must be used within the 12-month period starting July 1 through June 30.

B. Holidays

1. Holidays shall be identified by the assistant superintendent of Auxiliary Services after the adoption of the school calendar by the Board of Education. Normally, the holidays would include the following:

New Year's Day	Thanksgiving Day
Presidents' Day	Day after Thanksgiving
Memorial Day	Christmas Day
July 4	Day before and after Christmas
Labor Day	Martin Luther King Day

Marry Vacric Day

- 2. When any of the above holidays fall on a Saturday or Sunday, an employee will be given the opportunity to take said holiday on a Friday or Monday, the day to be decided by the director responsible for Custodial, Maintenance and Grounds. If a holiday falls at a time when personnel cannot be released on a Friday or Monday; i.e., Memorial Day, when school is in session, the day granted under this Policy will be granted at a later date.
- 3. <u>Holiday Work</u>: When an employee is required to work any holiday listed above, the employee will be compensated for the holiday and, in addition, shall be paid time and one-half for all hours actually worked on that day.

Changed from Policy 4216.6 and Policy 4243.11

Revised: April 9, 2018 Adopted: August 13, 2018 Effective: July 1, 2018

Military Leave, Jury Duty Leave, Subpoenaed Witness, Policy 4051

1. Leave of Absence for Active Military Duty for Training

- a. An employee, who is a member of a reserve component of the United States military services or a member of a National Guard Unit, shall be granted leave for up to fifteen days of active duty for training in any year.
- b. Such military training leave shall be granted with pay if the training takes place during an employee's regular contracted or assigned work time. Such sums as shall be paid by the military for salary while on training leave shall be reimbursed to the District up to that amount which equals the employee's normal salary or wage for the day(s) in question.
 - Should the amount paid by the military exceed the employee's normal salary or wage paid by the District, the employee may keep such excess.
- c. A copy of the employee's orders will accompany the request for leave. The provisions of Colorado Statute shall apply.

2. Military Leave

An employee who is involuntarily inducted into active military service shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence without pay by the Board of Education for the period of involuntary service. A copy of the employee's orders will accompany the request for leave. The provisions of Colorado Statute shall apply.

3. Leave of Absence for Jury Duty

All regular employees and all regular part-time employees under court orders for jury duty shall be granted leave of absence with pay. Such sums as shall be paid by the court, minus expenses, shall be forwarded to the School District if jury duty occurs on a contracted day.

The employee shall supply documentation of absences and amount of compensation.

4. Subpoenaed Witness

Any employee subpoenaed as a witness in a court case involving the Cherry Creek School District shall be granted leave with pay unless said employee is the plaintiff in the case.

Adopted: November 14, 1983 Effective: January 1, 1984

General Information

Employee - Board of Education Relationships, Policy 4002

- 1. The Board of Education of the Cherry Creek School District is always accessible to employees and employee representatives of the District.
- 2. As a general rule, any topic necessitating official action should first be submitted to the Office of Human Resources before being placed on the agenda.

Revised: June 10, 2002 Adopted: June 10, 2002 Effective: July 1, 2002

Publication of Articles, *Policy 4003*

All staff members are encouraged to submit original articles for publication. Manuscripts dealing with programs of the Cherry Creek School District shall be reviewed and approved by the Superintendent.

Proposed: January 12, 1981 Adopted: February 9, 1981

Political Activities, Policy 4006

Except as provided in Colorado statute no employee of the Cherry Creek School District shall use his/her position or the facilities of the District to promote political objectives.

As a protection to the District from persons who may desire to use the schools for the purpose of disseminating political propaganda, no written materials shall be circulated or posted on school property without the approval of the building principal.

Copies of all materials referred to in the foregoing paragraph, receiving the approval of the building principal, shall be filed with the Superintendent of Schools.

Proposed: January 12, 1988 Adopted: February 9, 1988

Organizational Membership, Policy 4013

No contract or other employment arrangement executed or made by and between the School District and employee shall require, by inference or otherwise, that said employee pay dues or belong to any group or organization.

Proposed: May 12, 1980 Adopted: June 9, 1980

Activity Tickets, Policy 4043

1. All District personnel will present their District/School issued photo ID at home games of athletic contests for the employee and accompanying immediate family to enter for free. Does not include post-season games.

Proposed: May 23, 2012

Adopted: August 13, 2012 Effective: July 1, 2012

Physical and Mental Examinations and Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testing, *Policy*4047

Employees of the Cherry Creek School District are subject to physical and mental examinations, and alcohol and controlled substances testing prior to and during employment. The following provisions of this policy set forth the circumstances and conditions when such examinations and testing will be required:

A. Physical Examination - All Employees

After recommendation for employment but before employment commences, candidates for employment may be required to take and pass such physical and mental examinations as may be prescribed by the District. Results of such examinations shall be reported on forms provided by the District, or forms acceptable to the District, and shall be filed in the Office of Human Resources. All examinations shall be at the sole cost and expense of the candidate.

B. Required Examination During Employment - All Employees

- 1. The superintendent or designee may require any employee within the school district to submit to a physical or mental examination, when he/she has reasonable suspicion to believe:
 - (a) the welfare of the employee, students or other employees justifies such examination; or
 - (b) that the employee's ability to perform his or her duties is impaired due to physical or mental reasons.

The District will pay the cost of the examination which shall be conducted by a physician of the District's choice. However, in the event the employee desires to utilize a personal physician, subject to the approval of the Superintendent, to satisfy the employee's examination requirement, the employee may do so, provided the examination can be conducted within such time as may be reasonably required by the

District. In such event, the private physician will be paid by the District an amount equal to the amount usually and customarily paid by the District to the physician selected by the District.

Following the examination, a written report shall be issued by the physician.

2. As a condition of continued employment with the District, all employees consent to a chemical test of their blood, urine or breath upon request of the Superintendent or designee. This test shall be ordered in the event the Superintendent or designee has reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or in the event of a reasonable suspicion that the employee's ability to perform his/her duties is impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs. The employee will be allowed up to thirty minutes to obtain representation of his/her choice. Any such tests shall be

conducted at any hospital, clinic, or facility properly equipped to administer such tests and shall be performed by any doctor, nurse or technician properly qualified to administer such tests. The employee may not select the physician or technician to administer the tests. All such tests shall be paid for by the District.

The term drugs, as used herein, shall include, but not be limited to, those substances defined in CR5. 12-22-30 1 et. seq., known as the Colorado Controlled Substance Act of 1981.

- (a) The failure or refusal of an employee to submit to any test required in paragraph 2 above, or to submit to and obtain the examinations required in paragraph 1 above, shall constitute insubordination, and shall result in:
 - (1) immediate suspension without pay, except as required by Colorado Statute, and,
 - (2) termination of employment being recommended to the Board of Education.
- 3. <u>Alcohol and Controlled Substance (Drugs) Testing for Commercial Driver's License (CDL) Employees</u>
 - (a) The Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 (the "ACT") and Department of Transportation rules, procedures and regulations (the "Regulations") require that the District conduct pre-employment/pre-duty, random, reasonable suspicion, post-accident, return to duty and follow-up testing of all District employees required to obtain a Commercial Driver's License ("CDL").
 - (b) All alcohol and controlled substance testing performed under and pursuant to this Section C, will be conducted in accordance with federal regulations, the Act and procedures adopted by the District.
 - (1) Controlled substance testing will be conducted by means of a urine specimen collected and tested by a laboratory certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.
 - (2) Alcohol testing will be conducted using an evidential breath-testing device.
 - (3) Employees will not be entitled to have testing performed at a location or by an individual or facility other than that designated by the District. However, a split sample of the urine test for controlled substances will be available for the employee pursuant to District policy and federal regulations in the event the sample tested is confirmed positive.
 - (4) An employee may not refuse to submit to alcohol and/or controlled substance testing under this Section C. Refusal shall result in immediate suspension of employment without pay and recommendation of termination to the Board,
- C. The required testing under this Section C will be conducted at the District's expense and as follows:
 - 1. Pre-employment testing shall be administered to all applicants offered a position in the District requiring a CDL prior to the first time the employee performs any safety-sensitive functions for the District.

- 2. Random alcohol testing shall be conducted at any time period surrounding the performance of safety-related functions, which includes just before or just after the employee performs the safety-related function. Random controlled substance testing shall be performed anytime while the employee is at work.
- 3. Reasonable suspicion testing will be conducted of any employee when a determination and observation is made by a trained supervisor and he has a reasonable suspicion to believe any employee has violated the District's policies and/or federal regulations relating to alcohol or controlled substance use or possession.
- 4. Post-accident testing will be conducted on any employee involved in an accident which results in the loss of human life or if the employee receives a citation for a moving traffic violation arising out of an accident.
- 5. Return to duty testing will be required prior to an employee being reinstated, if at all, after an employee has tested positive for prohibited alcohol concentration levels or the presence of a controlled substance and after the employee has undergone an evaluation by a substance abuse professional except as noted in No. 6 below.
- 6. Follow-up testing will be required of any employee identified by a substance abuse professional as needing assistance in resolving problems with alcohol misuse or controlled substance use and who has returned to duty.
- D. Records of all tests will be maintained and kept confidential in accordance with District procedures and federal regulations.
- E. All affected employees and employee organizations will be provided with educational materials which explain the requirements of this Section C, the District procedures and federal regulations related thereto.
- F. The District encourages all employees with any alcohol abuse or controlled substance use to seek assistance through a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) and will provide employees lists of individuals and organizations providing this service. Unless otherwise provided by law or District policy, the District is not required to provide rehabilitation, pay for substance abuse treatment or to reinstate an employee terminated for violations of District policy rebating to the use or possession of alcohol or controlled substances.
- G. Any employee who is determined, as the result of any of the required alcohol or controlled substance testing, to have violated any District policy relating to the use of possession of alcohol or controlled substances shall, consistent with state and federal law and District policies, be subject to disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

Revised: December 12, 1994 Adopted: January 9, 1995

Communicable or Life-Threatening Diseases, Administrative Procedure 4047.2

A. Purpose

This procedure establishes a mutually-beneficial process between an ill employee and the

District to insure that the health or safety of the employee, students and other employees is protected.

B. <u>Identification of Ill Employees</u>

Employees affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness may be identified through self-report, or on the basis of the District having a reasonable belief that a staff member is ill. Reasonable belief would exist in, but is not limited to, situations where the employee's health is observed to be deteriorating to the point of interfering with the performance of his/her duties, the employee displays persistent physical symptoms of illness, where the District becomes aware of a diagnosis of such an illness or disease, or where there is other reasonable evidence of the existence of such disease.

If a supervisor has been informed or has reasonable cause to believe that an employee is affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness, the supervisor will immediately notify the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or his/her designee may confer with, but not limited to, the supervisor, the Executive Director of Instruction for that school, the staff member, and the Superintendent of Schools for determination of fitness as provided in Section D below.

C. <u>Verification of Illness or Disease</u>

The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee will take reasonable steps to verify the existence or non-existence of a communicable or life-threatening disease. This will be determined by a review of medical reports, files, diagnostic testing, hospital records, and/or consultation with physicians or other medical personnel as may be deemed necessary.

D. <u>Determination of Fitness for Continued Duty</u>

In the event an employee is affected by a communicable or life-threatening disease or illness, recommendations regarding the employee's fitness for continued duty and contact with students and other staff will be made on a case-by-case basis by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. The recommendations will be based on, but not limited to:

- 1. Medical reports regarding the condition of the employee;
- 2. The type of duties and interaction in the work place required of the employee in performance of his/her assignment;
- 3. The impact of continued employment on the affected employee, students and others in the work place;
- 4. Consideration of "reasonable accommodations" in the employment of the affected employee pursuant to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act when applicable, and
- Input and recommendations from public health officials and others.
 Recommendations will be submitted to the Superintendent of Schools for review and action.

E. Return to Duty

If an ill staff member is determined to be fit for continued duty, the supervisor will be informed of the employee's medical condition, the reasonable accommodations/precautions, if any, to be observed in the work setting, and any other factors that would warrant the reconsideration of continued duty. A regular schedule of medical examinations or evaluations for continued employment may be required.

F. <u>Termination of Employment</u>

If a staff member is determined to be unfit for continued duty, he/she will be entitled to the use of accumulated paid sick leave, sick leave bank provisions (if applicable), and medical leave of absence as outlined in district policy.

After all leave options are exhausted and the employee is still not deemed fit to resume duties, employment will be terminated by the employee's resignation or retirement, or by Board of Education action including initiation of dismissal proceedings under applicable Colorado Statute or District policies subject to the usual appeals by the employee.

G. Confidentiality

All information gained by the District through the application of this procedure, including the identity of an employee, will be treated as confidential except as necessary to implement this procedure. Information will not be released publicly by officials of the school district without the written consent of the affected employee.

The adoption of this procedure does not create any right claim or cause of action against the District or its employees where such right claim or cause of action does not otherwise exist in the absence hereof.

Approved by Superintendent Jim S. Huge, June 13, 1988

Drug-Free Workplace, Policy 4048

The unlawful manufacture, possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs, as defined by law, marijuana, and alcohol on school district premises or as part of any of the school district activities is specifically prohibited.

Observance of this policy is mandatory and a condition of employment. A violation shall subject the employee to appropriate disciplinary sanctions (consistent with local, state and federal law), including suspension and up to and including termination of employment and referral to the appropriate law enforcement agency for prosecution. A disciplinary sanction may include completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program.

Drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation and re-entry programs may be available through the District. The District encourages affected employees to seek assistance.

Each employee will be provided with a copy of this policy which sets forth the expected standards of conduct and the disciplinary sanctions which may be imposed as a result of a violation of this policy.

Pursuant to the provisions of federal law, any employee who is convicted of or pleads guilty or nolo contendere (no contest) to any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace, shall notify the Superintendent or his designee within five days after the conviction. The District has the obligation and shall notify the appropriate Federal agency within 10 days after receiving notice of such conviction or plea if there is a relationship between federal funds received by the District and the convicted employee's work site.

The Board of Education shall conduct a biennial review of its drug and alcohol abuse prevention programs to determine the programs' effectiveness, to implement required changes if necessary, and to insure that disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.

Proposed: June 28, 2013 Adopted: August 12, 2013 Effective: July 1, 2013